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From: jody spear

To: Patterson, Megan L

Subject: corrected and resubmitted letter re: chlorothalonil
Date: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 3:56:46 PM

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not
click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Megan,

The "newer chemistries" on the UMCE list for potato fungal control include cyazofamid,
cymoxanil, dimethomorph, fluazinam, mandipropamid, difenoconazole, mefenoxam,
oxathiapiprolin, propamocarb, and zoxamide -- all rated toxic. [I'll be looking for reasons
the board would defend the use of these chemicals in place of chlorothalonil, as opposed
to organic protocols.

As I said in my letter of 9 Nov., Steven Johnson has not been helpful. He ignored my
repeated requests for recommendations, following up the BDN story (linked below), until
my state rep interceded on my behalf, and even then all he did was throw out to me the
aforementioned UMCE fact sheet including chlorothalonil, which he now says should be
discontinued. I hope the board will confer with him and get back to me with answers.

Thanks,

Jody
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Aroostook

The pesticide Maine potato farmers
use to control disease is being
banned around the world

Anthony Brino | Star-Herald
Sprayer tracks are seen in a Presque Isle potato field waiting to be harvested on Sept. 18, 2019.

By Anthony Brino, BDN Staff « September 19, 2019 6:00 am

PRESQUE ISLE, Maine — University of Maine Cooperative Extension

crops specialist Steven Johnson is letting the region's potato growers
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know that they might consider changing the ways they control the

disease late blight in the coming years.

Johnson, who has worked with Cooperative Extension for more than
30 years and runs the late blight forecast, said there have been recent
national and international changes in the regulation of the fungicide
chlorothalonil, and that growers may want to start transitioning to

using newer chemicals.

“I'm trying to give a heads up,” Johnson said. “Potatoes are a tough
competitive business. People get to the point where they get done
growing potatoes because the regulations are too much. I've seen that.
People say, it's time for me to hang it up,' and we are an aging

business.”

Chlorothalonil has been widely used since the early 1970s to control
fungal diseases in a range of crops, including apples and potatoes.
While it remains effective, the chemical has come under government
scrutiny and limitations in recent decades. It is considered a “likely
human carcinogen” by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, can
leach into groundwater and is highly toxic to fish and aquatic species.
It's also been implicated in damage to honeybees and native

pollinators.

In March, the European Union banned chlorothalonil, while Canada
has sharply reduced the amount and number of applications allowed
in a growing season. The U.S. EPA has also reduced the amount and
applications allowed and will be reviewing the chemical's registration

in 2020.
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The russet potato varieties that comprise much of Aroostook County's
processing potato crop are often susceptible to late blight, the quasi-
fungal disease that causes rots and led to the Irish potato famine. As
northern Maine's potato industry shifted to russet varieties for
processing since the 1970s, chlorothalonil became the main fungicide
used to control late blight, with 15 to 20 applications made in a

season, depending on the conditions, Johnson said.

Today, Maine growers typically use fewer than 12-15 applications of
chlorothalonil in a season, but future government-mandated
reductions may be likely and the current amounts may also limit

export opportunities, Johnson said.

“There've been some years that we've shipped a lot of potatoes to
Europe when there's a crop issue there. That might present challenges

with regard to how Europe allows imports.”

Johnson said he has been researching new alternatives to
chlorothalonil. They're often just as effective, used in smaller
concentrations and less frequently, but may be unfamiliar to longtime
farmers who are comfortable with what they know. Johnson shares
his findings and outlook with growers at meetings, field days and in

newsletters.

“I've been working on this for the last 10 years,” Johnson said. “We
have a lot better and newer chemistries that have better and longer
efficacy. Newer fungicides are used at a much lower rate and generally
speaking are less toxic to people, aquatic life and non-target

organisms.”
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While chlorothalonil might need to be sprayed weekly to maintain

“protective coverage,” newer ones can be applied twice a month.

“Some of the new materials have been embraced and work well and
people are happy with them,” Johnson said. “They fit the farming

schedule. Some of them might take a vacation.”

Adopting these newer chemicals would be a “paradigm shift” for some
growers, though they fit well into the strategy of integrated pest
management where pesticides are used only in response to an

economic threat, Johnson said.

“Fungicides don't increase the yield; they protect the yield,” Johnson
said. “When a yield isn't threatened, they don't need to be used for

controlling the pathogen. It keeps money in people's pockets.”

This story originally appeared on The County.

RECOMMENDED FOR YOU

Have feedback? Want to know more? Send us ideas for follow-up stories.
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